
 

 

STA/STPA/STSC 
GOVERNING BOARD/SAC 

MEMBER PACKET  
EMERGENCY VIRTUAL  

MEETING  
April 30, 2020 

 
 
 

SouthTech Charter Academy, Inc. 
SouthTech Preparatory Academy, Inc. 

SouthTech Success Center, Inc.  

 

Vacant -  Superintendent 
Eileen Turenne, STA/STSC High School Principal 

Nicole Handy, STPA Middle School Principal 
 

 
 



SOUTHTECH CHARTER ACADEMY, INC. 
SOUTHTECH PREPARATORY ACADEMY, INC. 

SOUTHTECH SUCCESS CENTER, INC. 
STA/STPA/STSC Governing Board Emergency Virtual Meeting Agenda 

April 30, 2020 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Roll Call:  Board Secretary – Confirm Quorum Present   
Roger Dunson          Ayesha Edmond Russell Feldman 
Dan Heller  Diane Heinz  Robert Kesten 
Carl McKoy  Suzanne Nicolini James Notter 

        
4. Open Meeting Act Statement: Chairperson asks if public notice has been made. 

 
5. Approval of the Minutes for the STA/STPA/STSC Regular Governing Board/SAC 

Board Meeting March 12, 2020. 
Introduced by:_______________Seconded by:________________ 

 All in favor: ________________ Opposed: ___________________ 
 

6. Introduction and Purpose of the Meeting – James Notter, Board Chair 
 

7. Treasurer’s/Financial Report for STA/STPA/STSC: Current monthly Bank 
Reconciliation and Disbursement Report 
 

8. Reports 
a. Board Chair (Superintendent Vacancy) 

o Charter Negotiations 
b. Principal – SouthTech Academy 

o Graduation 
c. Principal – SouthTech Preparatory Academy 

o Teacher Recognition 
d. Committees 

o SouthTech Academy Transition Committee – Steven Kozak, 
Committee Chair 

 
9. Public Comments on Agenda Items – Five (5) Minutes Maximum Each Person 

 
10. Introduction of Consent Agenda for SOUTHTECH ACADEMY – Board Chair 

(Superintendent Vacancy) 
Old Business    

 None. 
Administrative Items 



            A-1 I recommend that the Board adopt Policy 1.032 Emergency Policy Relating to 
School Board Meetings. 

            Personnel Items   
 None. 

                  Financial Items 
C-1 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly Charter school  

  bank account reconciliation for the month ending February 29, 2020 as required  
by the Sponsor. 

           C-2 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the Charter school monthly  
 Disbursement Report for the month ending February 29, 2020 as required by the 

Sponsor. 
            C-3 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly financial statements for 

the month ending February 29, 2020 as required by the Sponsor. 
C-4 I recommend that the Board approve the Amended Transportation Agreement 

with A&S Transportation, Inc. for SY20.  
            C-5 I recommend that the Board approve the transportation agreement with A&S 

Transportation, Inc. 
            C-6 I recommend that the Board approve the contract with Powell Landscaping & 

Design, Inc.   
            Emergency Items 

None. 
 

11. Poll Board for Items to be Pulled for Comment or Questions 
 

12. Approval of SouthTech Academy Consent Agenda Except for Items Pulled  
Introduced by_____________________Seconded by_____________________ 
All in favor______________________ Opposed______________________ 

 
13. Approval of Each Pulled Item (Item-by Item) – Introduction by Board Chair 

(Superintendent Vacancy) 
 

14. Public Comments on non-Agenda Items – Five (5) Minutes Maximum Each Person 
 

15. Introduction of Consent Agenda for SOUTHTECH PREPARATORY ACADEMY- 
Board Chair (Superintendent Vacancy):  

 Old Business 
 None. 
 Administrative Items   
 PA-1 I recommend that the Board adopt Policy 1.032 Emergency Policy Relating to  
  School Board Meetings. 
 Personnel Items  
 None. 

Financial Items 
PC-1 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly Charter school  

  bank account reconciliation for the month ending February 29, 2020 as required  
by the Sponsor. 



 PC-2 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the Charter school monthly  
Disbursement Report for the month ending February 29, 2020 as required by the 
Sponsor. 

 PC-3 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly financial statements for  
  the month ending February 29, 2020 as required by the Sponsor. 
 PC-4 I recommend that the Board approve the Amended Transportation Agreement  
  with A&S Transportation, Inc. for SY20. 
            PC-5 I recommend that the Board approve the transportation agreement with A&S 

Transportation, Inc. 
            PC-6 I recommend that the Board approve the Food Services Agreement for FY21 with 

the Sponsor and authorize the Board Chair to sign all related documents. 
            Emergency Items 

None. 
 
      16. Poll Board for Items to be Pulled for Comment or Questions 
 

17. Approval of SouthTech Preparatory Academy Consent Agenda Except for Items 
Pulled:  
Introduced by_____________________ Seconded by_____________________ 

            All in favor______________________    Opposed______________________ 
 
18. Approval of Each Pulled Item (Item-by Item) – Introduction by Board Chair  

(Superintendent Vacancy) 
 

19. Public Comments on non-Agenda Items – Five (5) Minutes Maximum Each Person 
 

20. Introduction of Consent Agenda for SOUTHTECH SUCCESS CENTER 
GOVERNING BOARD – Board Chair (Superintendent Vacancy):   
Old Business 
None. 
Administrative Items   

 SCA-1 I recommend that the Board adopt Policy 1.032 Emergency Policy Relating to  
  School Board Meetings. 
            Personnel Items  
 None. 

Financial Items 
SCC-1 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly Charter school  

  bank account reconciliation for the month ending February 29, 2020 as required  
by the Sponsor. 

 SCC-2 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the Charter school monthly  
Disbursement Report for the month ending February 29, 2020 as required by the 
Sponsor. 

 SCC-3 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly financial statements for  
  the month ending February 29, 2020 as required by the Sponsor. 
            Emergency Items 
            None. 



 
      21.  Poll Board for Items to be Pulled for Comment or Questions 
             N/A 
 

22.  Approval of SouthTech Success Center Consent Agenda Except for Items Pulled  
Introduced by_____________________Seconded by_____________________ 
All in favor______________________ Opposed______________________ 

 
23. Approval of Each Pulled Item (Item-by Item) – Introduction by Board Chair 

(Superintendent Vacancy) 
 

24. Public Comments on non-agenda items: 
 
      25. Board Comments 
 

26. Motion to Adjourn 
Introduced by: ______________________ 
All in favor:________________________Opposed:________________________ 
Time________________  

 
 
 

 



SOUTHTECH CHARTER ACADEMY, INC. 
SOUTHTECH PREPARATORY ACADEMY, INC. 

SOUTHTECH SUCCESS CENTER, INC. 
STA/STPA/STSC Governing Board Regular Meeting Agenda 

March 12, 2020 
___________________________________________________________________________ 

1. Call to Order by James Notter at 7:05pm. 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Roll Call -Lisa DeVine, Board Clerk – Quorum Present   
Present:  Roger Dunson, Russell Feldman, Diane Heinz, Robert Kesten, Suzanne  

    Nicolini and James Notter 
Absent: Ayesha Edmond, Dan Heller and Carl McKoy 

        
4. Open Meeting Act Statement: Proper public notice has been made. 

 
5. Public Presentation: None.  

 
6. Approval of the Minutes for the STA/STPA/STSC Regular Governing Board/SAC 

Board Meeting February 13, 2020. 
Motion: Robert Kesten  Second: Suzanne Nicolini 
All in favor. Motion carries. 

 
7. Treasurer’s/Financial Report for STA/STPA/STSC – James Notter, Board Chair 

a. Mr. Notter presented in the absence of Dan Heller, Board Treasurer. 
STA/STPA/STSC Finance Committee met prior to the Board meeting and 
recommends that the Board approve STA Items C-1 through C-3; STP Items PC-1 
through PC-4; and STSC Items SCC-1 through SCC-3. On the list of 
discretionary items discussed at the Finance Committee meeting were next year’s 
budget and the voluntary closure of SouthTech Success Center. 

 
8. Reports 

a. Board Chair (Superintendent Vacancy) – James Notter 
i. Job Search – Executive Director/CEO 

1. On track with the timeline outlined in the January Board Meeting 
2. Jennifer Melillo gave a report of how the process is taking shape 

a. Advertising for position on indeed.com 
b. 161 applicants in a week and a half 
c. 18 applicants fit the job criteria 
d. Eileen Turenne, Nicole Handy, Kathryn McInerney, and 

Steve Kozak reviewed the resumes of those 18 individuals 
and each picked their top 3 candidates and 2 honorable 
mentions 

e. On Monday the team met and picked the top 7 candidates 
i. Currently vetting those 7 applicants  



f. Will be conducting interviews after Spring Break 
i. Additional staff involvement including a member of 

the instructional staff from each school 
g. Top 3 candidates will then be brought before the Board 
h. Selection to be made by the end of June 
i. Start date in July 

ii. STA Charter Negotiations 
1. Extended the current charter for 2 months, not 4 months as we 

have previously done 
2. The negotiation team has a meeting tomorrow (3.13.20) at 

11:00am at the District 
a. Will provide an update after the negotiation meeting and 

prior to the next board meeting 
iii. Budget 

1. First draft of next year’s budget to presented to the Board at the 
next meeting 

iv. Next Meeting will be on Tuesday, April 7, 2020 
1. Spring Holiday on Friday, April 10th 

b. Principal of SouthTech Academy – Eileen Turenne 
i. School Safety 

1. School safety, which typically referred to gun violence safety, 
currently refers to Coronavirus safety 

a. “Code Clean” 
b. CDC approved cleaning method in place 
c. Cleaning service performed a deep cleaning of the entire 

campus 
2. Long Distance Learning Plan 

a. Follow the lead of the District in terms of school closures 
b. Teachers and students will utilize Google Classroom 
c. Sending out a technology survey to all students 

3. Mr. Notter is able to make the decision regarding school closures 
as acting CEO, no need for a motion to be made 

ii. Continuous School Improvement 
1. Acceleration Rate 

a. Currently at a 95% - 202/213 seniors have industry 
certifications 

2. Graduation Rate  
a. Currently at a 96.2% 
b. Only 6 seniors have not yet met their reading requirement. 

iii. Program Expansion 
1. Current Enrollment  

a. STA = 1089 1083 (1085 in budget)  
b. STSC = 90 (88 in budget) 

2. Applications for Fall of 2020   
a. February = 298 Up from 201 



b. March = 419 Up from 313 same time last year 
c. Predicting over 1200 students to open up the 2020-21 

school year 
3. Feb. 27th Recruitment Open House - update 

iv. Facilities Improvement/Growth 
1. Feb. 28th Teacher Work Day/New Campus Visits 
2. March 17th Next Opportunity for New Campus Visit 

v. Government Relations 
1. February 20th Black History Month Breakfast 

a. Keynote Speaker Yvonne Odom 
2. March 2nd – March 6th “Say Something Week” 

a. March 3rd, 2020 City Commission Meeting 
b. City of Boynton Beach Proclamation presented by Mayor 

Steven Grant 
c. “WHEREAS Sandy Hook Promise’s Say Something Week 

is being celebrated as part of National Say Something 
Week, March 2nd, 2020 – March 6th, 2020 at SouthTech 
Academy in Boynton Beach…” 

c. Principal of SouthTech Preparatory Academy – Nicole Handy 
i. Continuous School Improvement 

1. Winter Diagnostic Data Feeder School FSA Comparison 
a. Outperforming feeder schools in most subject areas 

ii. Program Expansion 
1. Strategic/Purposeful Systems-Based Organization  

a. Starting with our Department Heads along with WiseTribe 
to look at school as a system based learning organization 

b. Food sustainability  
c. Community resource center 

2. Model Classrooms 
a. Set an expectation of what a classroom should look like 

3. Enrollment comparison 
a. 2019 = 535 total students 
b. 2020 = 539 total students 
c. Stable enrollment numbers 

iii. Facilities Improvement/Growth 
1. Coronavirus – elevated cleaning report 

a. Following CDC cleaning recommendations 
b. Spray bottles distributed to teachers for use throughout the 

day 
c. M&T Cleaning following their CDS Cleaning Program 

i. Cleaning, Disinfecting and Sterilizing 
2. Student Survey (connectivity in case of school closure) 
3. Google Classroom – Google Hub 

iv. Government Relations 



1. Earth Day – April 22nd – Garden Ribbon Cutting Ceremony with 
press coverage – invite Mayor Grant (Kozak) 

v. Employee Concern 
1. Shared employee concern regarding health insurance – would like 

us to research more cost effective options and providers with a 
wellness discount program. 

d. Principal of SouthTech Success Center – Eileen Turenne 
i. Voluntary Closure of STSC 

1. Specific steps taken 
a. Last Monday a letter was sent to STSC parents, all Board 

members, Palm Beach County School District and the 
Florida Department of Education 

b. Followed up with a Parent Link 
c. Students received a flyer this Monday to bring home 

reminding STSC parents of the meeting 3.12.20 at 7:00am 
d. Wednesday 3.11.20 – Parent Link in the evening as a 

further reminder of the parent meeting 
e. Parent Meeting held this morning at 7:00am in the Media 

Center 
ii. Approximately 15 STSC parents present 

iii. Asked a lot of questions 
iv. Left feeling very optimistic 

f. Closure on the Agenda this evening 
g. Letter being edited to show what is decided tonight and will 

be mailed out to the District and FLDOE tomorrow 
morning 

e. Director of STA Adult Education – Eric Messmer 
i. ESOL 

1. Fall 2020 Term = STAE was the #1 site for LCP per posttest which 
tests for a learning gain in English proficiency and was #4 in LCP 
per enrollment 

ii. Long Distance Learning 
1. In case schools are closed due to the Coronavirus, STAE is 

preparing a Long Distance Learning Plan through Google 
Classroom for most as well as encouraging students to utilize the 
software already in used for some classes: 

a. ESOL = Burlington English 
b. ABE/GED = Essential Education 
c. Cosmetology = Facebook Live 

f. Committees 
i. SouthTech Preparatory Site Committee – Robert Kesten 

1. Committee Meeting held last week 
a. LOI 

i. Responded to feedback from the seller’s lawyer 
ii. Due Diligence Phase 



1. Originally requested 120 days; agreed to 45 
days for inspection phase and 120 for 
financing phase 

iii. New Down Payments 
1. They asked for $250,000 down payment, 

countered with $125,000 down payment 
($50,000 first, $75,000 second)   

b. LOI to be finalized next week 
c. Enter into contract thereafter 
d. This is for the entire site, not just STP property 

i. Will receive rent from tenant on first floor of other 
building 

ii. Rent collected will go towards the loan amount 
 

9. Public Comments on Agenda Items – None 
 

10. Introduction of Consent Agenda for SOUTHTECH ACADEMY – James Notter, Board 
Chair (Superintendent Vacancy) 
Old Business    

 None. 
Administrative Items 

            A-1 I recommend that the Board approve the donations for the period from February 
13, 2020 to March 12, 2020. 

A-2 I recommend that the Board approve the changes to Board Policy 5.01 Student 
Selection and Enrollment. 

            Personnel Items   
 B-1 I recommend that the Board approve the Personnel Actions for the previous 
  month. 
 B-2 I recommend that the Board approve the Job Description for Assessment &  
  Compliance Specialist. 
 B-3 I recommend that the Board approve the Job Description for Assistant ESE  
  Coordinator. 
 B-4 I recommend that the Board approve the Job Description for Assistant Principal of  
  School Culture. 

                  Financial Items 
C-1 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly Charter school  

  bank account reconciliation for the month ending January 31, 2020 as required  
by the Sponsor. 

           C-2 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the Charter school monthly  
 Disbursement Report for the month ending January 31, 2020 as required by the 

Sponsor. 
            C-3 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly financial statements for 

the month ending January 31, 2020 as required by the Sponsor. 
            Emergency Items 

None. 
 



11. Poll Board for Items to be Pulled for Comment or Questions – None.  
 

12. Approval of SouthTech Academy Consent Agenda Except for Items Pulled  
Motion: Robert Kesten  Second: Suzanne Nicolini 
All in favor. Motion carries. 

 
13. Approval of Each Pulled Item (Item-by Item) – N/A 

 
14. Public Comments on non-Agenda Items – None. 

 
15. Introduction of Consent Agenda for SOUTHTECH PREPARATORY ACADEMY- 

James Notter, Board Chair (Superintendent Vacancy) 
 Old Business 
 None. 
 Administrative Items   

             None. 
 Personnel Items  
 PB-1 I recommend that the Board approve the Personnel Actions for the previous 
  month. 
 PB-2 I recommend that the Board approve the Job Description for Assessment &  
  Compliance Specialist. 

Financial Items 
PC-1 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly Charter school  

  bank account reconciliation for the month ending January 31, 2020 as required  
by the Sponsor. 

 PC-2 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the Charter school monthly  
Disbursement Report for the month ending January 31, 2020 as required by the 
Sponsor. 

 PC-3 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly financial statements for  
  the month ending January 31, 2020 as required by the Sponsor. 
 PC-4 I recommend that the Board approve the Agreement for Financial Advisory  
  Services with Building Hope Services, LLC, effective March 12, 2020.  
            Emergency Items 

None. 
 
      16. Poll Board for Items to be Pulled for Comment or Questions – None. 
 

17. Approval of SouthTech Preparatory Academy Consent Agenda Except for Items 
Pulled:  
Motion: Robert Kesten  Second: Diane Heinz 
All in favor. Motion carries. 

 
 
18. Approval of Each Pulled Item (Item-by Item) – N/A 

 
19. Public Comments on non-Agenda Items – None. 



 
20. Introduction of Consent Agenda for SOUTHTECH SUCCESS CENTER 

GOVERNING BOARD – James Notter, Board Chair (Superintendent Vacancy) 
Old Business 
None. 
Administrative Items   
SCA-1 I recommend that the Board approve the voluntary closure of SouthTech Success  

Center in June of 2020. 
            Personnel Items  
 SCB-1 I recommend that the Board approve the Personnel Actions for the previous 
  month. 

Financial Items 
SCC-1 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly Charter school  

  bank account reconciliation for the month ending January 31, 2020 as required  
by the Sponsor. 

 SCC-2 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the Charter school monthly  
Disbursement Report for the month ending January 31, 2020 as required by the 
Sponsor. 

 SCC-3 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly financial statements for  
  the month ending January 31, 2020 as required by the Sponsor. 
            Emergency Items 
            None. 
 
      21.  Poll Board for Items to be Pulled for Comment or Questions – None. 
 

22.  Approval of SouthTech Success Center Consent Agenda Except for Items Pulled  
  Motion: Robert Kesten  Second: Suzanne Nicolini 
 All in favor. Motion carries. 

 
23. Approval of Each Pulled Item (Item-by Item) – N/A 

 
24. Public Comments on non-agenda items – None. 

 
      25. GOVERNING BOARD IN THE CAPACITY OF SCHOOL ADVISORY  
            COUNCIL (SAC)   

South Tech Academy AND SouthTech Success Center:                
School Improvement Steering Committee (SISC) Report – Suzanne Nicolini, 
Chairperson 

o Tutoring program has improved test scores tremendously 
o Teacher Appreciation Week 

o Looking for donations and volunteers 
 Automotive Academy will be doing a car wash for all 

employees 
 Food truck will be brought in one day 

Introduction of the SouthTech Academy SAC Consent Agenda – N/A 
  



26. Poll SAC for Items to be Pulled from the SouthTech Academy SAC Consent Agenda for 
Comment or Questions – N/A 
 

27. Approval of SouthTech Academy SAC Consent Agenda Except for Items Pulled – N/A   
 

28. Approval of Each Pulled Item (Item-by Item) – N/A 
 
  

29. Introduction of the SouthTech Success Center SAC Consent Agenda – N/A 
  

30. Poll SAC for Items to be Pulled from the STSC SAC Consent Agenda for Comment or    
Questions – N/A 

 
      31. Approval of STSC SAC Consent Agenda Except for Items Pulled – N/A 
             
      32. Approval of Each Pulled Item (Item-by Item) – N/A 
 
      33. South Tech Preparatory Academy:       

School Improvement Steering Committee (SISC) Report – Nicole Handy 
o PTO sponsored St. Patrick’s Day Reward Celebration Reward 3.20.20  

o Free event for students nominated by their teachers 
o Spirit Week next week (3.16.20-3.20.20) 
o Annual Spring School Supply Drive currently taking place 
o Bulldog Beautification Project 

o Parents volunteer to help clean and beautify the campus (plants, pressure 
washing, etc.) 

o Upcycling Project 
o Using large water containers to build vertical gate gardens for an herb 

garden 
Introduction of the SouthTech Preparatory Academy SAC Consent Agenda – N/A 

 
 34. Poll SAC for Items to be Pulled from the STPA SAC Consent Agenda for Comment or 

 Questions – N/A 
 

35. Approval of STPA SAC Consent Agenda Except for Items Pulled – N/A 
 

36. Approval of Each Pulled Item (Item-by Item) – N/A 
 
      37. Board Comments 

The Board Members stated their appreciation of all staff members for their continued efforts 
to make SouthTech Schools an exceptional place of learning. They also thanked Shawna 
Kingsley-Scott and Julie Stewart for their years of dedication to Team SouthTech and wished 
them the best in their future endeavors. The board members gave their well wishes for 
everyone to stay safe and healthy during the Coronavirus outbreak. Mr. Notter ended the 
meeting by saying that he is so proud of the various accomplishments made at SouthTech 



Schools in the past 5 months, educationally and financially, and said that it has been a real 
pleasure to be a part of it all.  
 

38. Motion to Adjourn 
Robert Kesten motioned to adjourn at 8:21pm until the next Regular Board meeting on 
April 7, 2020 at 7:00pm. 
 

 
Minutes Prepared by: ______________________________    Approved by: ______________________________ 
                                                     Lisa DeVine                                                                    James F. Notter 
 
                               Date: _________________________                Date: _________________________ 
 

 



 

 

SOUTHTECH CHARTER ACADEMY, INC. 
CONSENT AGENDA 

April 30, 2020 
 
 
Old Business    

 None. 
 
Administrative Items 

            A-1 I recommend that the Board adopt Policy 1.032 Emergency Policy Relating to 
School Board Meetings. 

 
 Personnel Items   
 None. 
 

                  Financial Items 
C-1 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly Charter school  

  bank account reconciliation for the month ending February 29, 2020 as required  
by the Sponsor. 

           C-2 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the Charter school monthly  
 Disbursement Report for the month ending February 29, 2020 as required by the 

Sponsor. 
            C-3 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly financial statements for 

the month ending February 29, 2020 as required by the Sponsor. 
C-4 I recommend that the Board approve the Amended Transportation Agreement 

with A&S Transportation, Inc. for SY20.  
            C-5 I recommend that the Board approve the transportation agreement with A&S 

Transportation, Inc. 
            C-6 I recommend that the Board approve the contract with Powell Landscaping & 

Design, Inc.   
 
            Emergency Items 

None. 
 



 Governing Board of Directors 
SouthTech Charter Academy, Inc. 

 
 

 
 

Motion: 
 

I recommend that the Board adopt Policy 1.032 Emergency Policy Relating to School Board 
Meetings. 
 
 
 
Summary Information: 
 
I recommend that the Board adopt Policy 1.032 Emergency Policy Relating to School Board 
Meetings due to the imminent danger to the public health, safety, and welfare posed by the 
spread of COVID-19. The Board is taking only the action necessary to protect the public interest. 
This immediate danger requires emergency action and the procedure for the adoption of this 
emergency policy is fair under the circumstances for the reasons stated in the attachment. 
 
 

 
Attachments:  Policy 1.032 Emergency Policy Relating to School Board Meetings 

            
 
 
Presented By: 
 
James Notter, Board Chair 
  
 
Financial Impact: 
 
There is no financial impact associated with this item. 
 

Agenda Item 
A-1 

Board Meeting 
April 30, 2020 



South Tech Charter Academy, Inc. Board Policy 1.032 
 

Emergency Policy Relating to School Board Meetings 
              
 
 
  

1. Purpose. The Board recognizes the need during the health emergency posed by the spread of 
COVID-19 to hold virtual or telephonic meetings as set forth in the March 17. 2020 Florida 
Department of Education’s Additional Guidance for the 2019-20 School Year, or for reasons 
allowed by any subsequent Executive Orders, Florida DOE directives, Attorney General Opinions, 
or Florida Laws (hereinafter referred to as “Directives”). 
  

2. Emergency Meetings During This Time. This Policy modifies and supersedes Board Policy 
1.03 on Board meetings. This Policy is consistent with the Directives to address items during this 
time and hold virtual or telephonic meetings where a quorum of Board members is not required to 
be physically present at the meeting in order to conduct and vote upon business. These meetings 
must be accessible to interested members of the public who wish to attend. 
  

3. Public Comment: In addition, this Policy modifies certain provisions in Policy 1.03 relating to 
public comment and allows public comment on agenda items through the virtual meeting. The 
meeting Notice shall state: 

a. how interested persons can attend virtually and 
  

b. the method (such as telephone number) for public comments to be made verbally and in 
writing. 
  

4. Authority. This policy supersedes any other policy and Policy 1.03 that is not consistent with the 
language herein relating to the emergency Board meetings. 
  

5. Duration of Policy. This policy becomes effective upon its emergency adoption. This policy shall 
remain effective for 90 days. 

 
  
 

        Authority:        FS 120.54 (4); 120.81 (1); 1001.32 (2); 1001.42 (28). 
 
        Implemented:        FS 120.54 (4); 1001.41 (1) & (3); 1001.42, including (8); 1001.43, including (10);             
         1001.48; 1001.49; 1001.51. 
 
  Reference:  Palm Beach School District Policy 1.032 
 
  History:  New: 4/30/20 
 
   

 



Governing Board of Directors 
SouthTech Charter Academy, Inc. 

 
 

 
 
Motion: 

 
I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly Charter school bank account 
reconciliation for the month ending February 29, 2020 as required by the Sponsor. 
 
Summary Information: 
 
The Charter school is required to submit to the Sponsor district several financial documents on 
an ongoing basis.  Monthly bank reconciliations are one such requirement.  
 
The Charter school maintains several accounts in order to maximize the earnings potential of the 
funding provided while maintaining liquidity to meet day-to-day operations.  Review of these 
accounts takes place on a daily basis by the Charter business staff.  Monthly reconciliations are 
performed as good accounting practice and published here to fulfill Sponsor requirements. 
 
Attachments: Reconciliation Spreadsheets and Bank Statements  
 
 
 
Presented By: 
 
James Notter, Board Chair 
 
 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
There is no financial impact related to this item.  
 
 

Agenda Item 
C-1 

Board Meeting 
April 30, 2020 

































































































Governing Board of Directors 
SouthTech Charter Academy, Inc. 

 
 

 
 
Motion: 

 
I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the Charter school monthly Disbursement 
Reports for the month ending February 29, 2020 as required by the Sponsor. 
 
Summary Information: 
 
The Charter school is required to provide several financial documents on an ongoing basis.  
Monthly records of disbursements are a requirement that must be provided to the Board.  
 
The Charter school maintains several accounts in order to maximize the earnings potential of the 
funding.  Each school account is listed separately along with a disbursement record of activity.  
Disbursements are made by warrant, wire transfer, account transfer and use of direct debit card.   
Processing of disbursements takes place on a daily basis by the Charter business staff.  All 
disbursements are reviewed and approved by the Board Chair.  All warrants have two 
signatories. 
 
Attachments: Disbursement Report  
 
 
Presented By: 
 
James Notter, Board Chair 
 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
There is no financial impact related to this item.   
 
 

Agenda Item 
C-2 

Board Meeting 
April 30, 2020 







Governing Board of Directors 
SouthTech Charter Academy, Inc. 

 
 
Motion: 

 
I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly financial statements for the month 
ending February 29, 2020 required by the Sponsor. 
 
Summary Information: 

 
The State statutes and the Palm Beach County School District require charter schools to provide 
financial statements on a monthly basis in the format that School Districts are required to follow.  
This format is  prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 
 
The monthly statements include: 

1. Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget to Actual 
2. The combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance  
3. A Combined Balance Sheet – All Fund Types 

 
Quarterly, a Statement of Net Assets is also required.  This is provided in March, June, 
September and December. 
 
 
Attachments:  Monthly Financial Statements  
 
Presented By: 
 
James Notter, Board Chair 
  
 
Financial Impact: 
 
There is no financial impact for this item. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
C-3 

Board Meeting 
April 30, 2020 



 

Accounts General Fund

Special 

Revenue Fund Debt Service Capital Outlay

Total 

Governmental 

Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 1110 1,332,352$       -$                  -$                  -$                  1,332,352$       

Investments 1160 -                    

Grant receivables 1130 182,679            182,679            

Other current assets 12XX 51,157              51,157              

Deposits 1210 -                    -                    

Due from other funds 1140 140,848            140,848            

Other long-term assets 1400 150,763            150,763            

 

Total Assets 1,857,799$       -$                  -$                  -$                  1,857,799$       

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE  

Liabilities  

Accounts payable 2120 76,102$            -$                  -$                  -$                  76,102$            

Salaries, benefits, and payroll taxes payable 2110, 2170, 2330 482,783            482,783            

Deferred revenue 2410 -                    -                    

Notes/bonds payable 2180, 2250, 2310, 2320 -                    

Lease payable 2315 -                    

Other liabilities 21XX, 22XX, 23XX -                    

Total Liabilities 558,885            -                    -                    -                    558,885            

 

Fund Balance  

Nonspendable 2710 201,920            201,920            

Restricted 2720 -                    

Committed 2730 -                    

Assigned 2740 152,944            152,944            

Unassigned 2750 944,050            944,050            

 

Total Fund Balance 1,298,914         -                    -                    -                    1,298,914         

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 1,857,799$       -$                  -$                  -$                  1,857,799$       

 

Palm Beach County, Florida

For the Month Ended February 29, 2020 and For the Year Ending June 30, 2020

  February 29, 2020   

South Tech Academy with MSID Number 1571

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Monthly Financial Form



FTE Projected 1,085        

FTE Actual 1,085        100% Percent of Projected

Account 

Number

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual  Annual Budget 

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Revenues

FEDERAL SOURCES 

    Federal direct 3100 -$                   -$                 -$                 % -$                 -$                 -                   %

    Federal through state and local 3200 64,046              438,256            637,076            69%

STATE SOURCES 

    FEFP 3310 576,790             4,492,428         6,639,196         68%

    Capital outlay 3397 5,695                 100,960            122,800            82%

    Class size reduction 3355 89,085               701,040            1,025,152         68%

    School recognition 3361 -                     105,132            105,132            100%

    Other state revenue 33XX 31,275               474,200            896,703            53%

LOCAL SOURCES

    Interest 3430 139                    1,784                5,000                36%

    Local capital improvement tax 3413

    Other local revenue 34XX 37,993               409,930            491,720            83%

Total Revenues 740,977             6,285,474         9,285,703         68% 64,046              438,256            637,076            69%

Expenditures

Current Expenditures

Instruction 5000 398,163             3,451,385         5,486,127         63% 38,150              295,928            385,900            77%

Instructional support services 6000 47,239               404,677            655,598            62% 13,101              140,400            217,069            65%

Board 7100 5,718                 73,569              64,920              113%

General administration 7200 1,399                 105,514            110,053            96%

School administration 7300 51,450               441,231            630,271            70%

Facilities and acquisition 7400 50,117               50,117              

Fiscal services 7500 15,751               125,297            179,592            70%

Food services 7600

Central services 7700 11,556               95,470              170,074            56%

Pupil transportation services 7800 66,626               419,693            652,163            64% -                   70                    1,000                7%

Operation of plant 7900 54,114               442,815            736,723            60% 2,559                24,571              33,107              74%

Maintenance of plant 8100 4,673                 42,120              50,776              83%

Administrative technology services 8200 6,321                 53,909              70,126              77%

Community services 9100 8,818                 128,508            245,000            52%

Debt service 9200

Total Expenditures 721,945             5,834,305         9,051,423         64% 53,810              460,969            637,076            72%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 19,032               451,169            234,280            10,236              (22,713)            -                   

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in 3600 10,236               -                   -                   -                   22,713              

Transfers out 9700 -                     (22,713)            (10,236)            -                   

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 10,236               (22,713)            -                   (10,236)            22,713              -                   

Net Change in Fund Balances 29,268               428,456            234,280            -                   -                   

Fund balances, beginning 1,269,646          1,002,552         1,002,552         100%

Adjustments to beginning fund balance -                     (132,094)          

Fund Balances, Beginning as Restated 1,269,646          870,458            1,002,552         87% -                   -                   -                   

Fund Balances, Ending 1,298,914$        1,298,914$       1,236,832$       105% -$                 -$                 -                   %

For the Month Ended February 29, 2020 and For the Year Ending June 30, 2020

South Tech Academy with MSID Number (1571)

Palm Beach County, Florida

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Unaudited)

General Fund Special Revenue



Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

 Month/ 

Quarter Actual  YTD Actual  Annual Budget 

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

-$                 -$                 -$                 % -$                 -$                 -$                 % -                   -                   -                   %

64,046              438,256            637,076            69%

 

576,790            4,492,428         6,639,196         68%

5,695                100,960            122,800            82%

89,085              701,040            1,025,152         68%

-                   105,132            105,132            100%

31,275              474,200            896,703            53%

139                  1,784                5,000                36%

-                   -                   -                   

37,993              409,930            491,720            83%

-                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   805,023            6,723,730         9,922,779         68%

436,313            3,747,313         5,872,027         64%

60,340              545,077            872,667            62%

5,718                73,569              64,920              113%

1,399                105,514            110,053            96%

51,450              441,231            630,271            70%

50,117              50,117              -                   

15,751              125,297            179,592            70%

-                   -                   -                   

11,556              95,470              170,074            56%

66,626              419,763            653,163            64%

-                   -                   -                   56,673              467,386            769,830            61%

4,673                42,120              50,776              83%

6,321                53,909              70,126              77%

8,818                128,508            245,000            52%

-                   -                   -                   

-                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   775,755            6,295,274         9,688,499         65%

-                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   29,268              428,456            234,281            

10,236              22,713              -                   

-                   -                   (10,236)            (22,713)            -                   

-                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

-                   -                   -                   -                   29,268              428,456            234,281            

1,269,646         1,002,552         1,002,552         100%

-                   (132,094)          -                   

-                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   1,269,646         870,458            1,002,552         87%

-$                 -$                 -$                 % -$                 -$                 -$                 % 1,298,914         1,298,914         1,236,833         105%

Debt Service Capital Outlay Total Governmental Funds



Governing Board of Directors 
South Tech Charter Academy, Inc. 

 
 

 
 
Motion: 
 
I recommend that the Board approve the Amended Transportation Agreement with A&S 
Transportation, Inc. for SY20.  
 
 
Summary Information: 

 
We are recommending that the Board approve the Amended Transportation Agreement with 
A&S Transportation, Inc. for SY20.  
 
 
Attachments:  A&S Transportation, Inc. Amended Transportation Agreement SY20. 
            
 
 
Presented By: 
 
Kathryn McInerney, Financial Officer 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
There is no financial impact for this item. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
C-4 

Board Meeting 
April 30, 2020 



AMMENDMENT 1  

  

This AMMENDMENT 1 (“Agreement”) is made and effective 4/10/20.  

  

BETWEEN:  A&S Transportation, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under laws of the State of Florida, with 

its head office located at:  

2601 Navistar Drive Lisle, 

IL  60532  

  

AND:      SouthTech Academy with a principal place of business located at:  

1300 SW 30th Ave.  

Boynton Beach, FL  33426   

In consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this agreement, the parties agree as follows:  

  

WHEREIN said Agreement expires on June 30, 2020, and the parties desire to extend the relationship under a new 

contract; it is provided that A&S Transportation, Inc. will waive the CPI increase it is entitled to for the 2019/20 

school year.  All invoices and charges will be re‐issued to remove the CPI and apply credits as necessary.  

SouthTech Academy agrees to expedite payment of the new invoices.  

  

SouthTech Academy further agrees to the new contract for transportation services from 2020‐2023.  

  

  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this agreement on ______________, 2020.  

CUSTOMER                     CONTRACTOR  

_____________________________            _____________________________  

Authorized Signature                  Authorized Signature  

  

_____________________________            _____________________________  

Printed name and title                Printed name and title   



Governing Board of Directors 
South Tech Charter Academy, Inc. 

 
 

 
 
Motion: 
 
I recommend that the Board approve the transportation agreement with A&S Transportation, Inc.   
 
 
Summary Information: 

 
We are recommending that the Board approve the transportation agreement with A&S 
Transportation, Inc. for SY21, SY22 and SY23. 
 
 
Attachments:  A&S Transportation, Inc. Agreement to Transport Pupils SY21-23. 
            
 
 
Presented By: 
 
Kathryn McInerney, Financial Officer 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
The financial impact is $678,253 for STA. It is a three-year contract with an increase of 2% or 
the CPI, whichever is greater. It is an increase of 2.6% over SY19 contract prices.  There was no 
increase for SY20. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
C-5 

Board Meeting 
April 30, 2020 



Agreement#STS2020  
SouthTech Schools  
Transportation Agreement  
  

  1  

AGREEMENT FOR THE TRANSPORTATION OF PUPILS  
  

This AGREEMENT FOR THE TRANSPORTATION OF PUPILS, hereinafter referred to as the  
“AGREEMENT”, is made and entered into this _____ day of ________, 20__, by and between SouthTech 
Schools, Inc. with a principal office located at 6161 Woolbright Rd.  Boynton Beach, FL 33437, hereinafter 
referred to as “CUSTOMER”, and A&S TRANSPORTATION, INC., a Florida corporation, with its 
principal office located at 2601 Navistar Drive, Lisle, Illinois 60532, hereinafter referred to as  
“CONTRACTOR.”  

1. Scope of Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall operate and maintain daily route school buses for the 
transportation of pupils using vehicles provided by CONTRACTOR. The CONTRACTOR shall 
provide daily service for CUSTOMER including home to school and school to home services, and such 
other transportation including but not limited to transportation to and from extracurricular events, 
providing equipment, storage and maintenance thereof; providing employees to perform such services; 
and administrative, supervisory and operational services required thereby ("Work") based on the 
assumptions and at the rates set forth on Schedule A.  

2. Term. The term of this AGREEMENT shall be for a period of three (3) years beginning July 1, 2020. 
This AGREEMENT shall be renewable for two (2) additional terms of two (2) year, at the option and 
mutual written agreement of both parties, taking into consideration CONTRACTOR’S performance 
under this AGREEMENT and cost negotiations, and subject to applicable statutes and regulations.  

3. Document Agreement. This AGREEMENT contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the 
parties.  It supersedes any and all previous agreements, oral or written, between the parties, and no other 
agreement regarding the subject matter of this Contract, or any part thereof, shall have any validity or 
bind the parties.  

4. Permits and Licenses. CONTRACTOR, its employees, and its agents shall secure and maintain valid 
permits, licenses, and certifications as required by law for the execution of this AGREEMENT.  

5. Insurance. CONTRACTOR shall maintain insurance as set forth below during this AGREEMENT 
period and shall furnish a certificate of insurance for General and Auto Liability coverage and for 
Workers' Compensation coverage. CONTRACTOR shall furnish new Certificates of Insurance for 
liability coverage and for Workers' Compensation coverage within thirty (30) days following the 
placement of new or renewed coverage. Certificates shall provide that a thirty (30) day prior notice of 
cancellation will be given to CUSTOMER.  

General and Auto Liability insurance shall be maintained to protect CONTRACTOR from any claims 
from damages for personal injury or death, and from damage to property, which may arise from 
operations of CONTRACTOR under this AGREEMENT. General and Auto Liability insurance shall 
each have a combined single limit of Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000). Workers' Compensation 
insurance shall be maintained as required by law and to protect CONTRACTOR from claims, which 
may arise from its operation under this AGREEMENT.  

6. Hold Harmless Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless and indemnify CUSTOMER, its 
Governing Board, Officers, Agents, and Employees from every claim or demand which may be made 
by reason of any injury to person or damage to property sustained by any person, firm or corporation, 
to the extent that such injury or damage was caused by any negligent act or omission or willful 
misconduct of CONTRACTOR or of any person, firm, or corporation, directly or indirectly employed 
by CONTRACTOR upon or in connection with its performance under this AGREEMENT.  



Agreement#STS2020  
SouthTech Schools  
Transportation Agreement  
  

  2  

To the extent permissible by law, CUSTOMER shall hold harmless and indemnify CONTRACTOR, 
its Officers, Agents, and Employees from every claim or demand which may be made by reason of any 
injury to person or damage to property sustained by any person, firm or corporation, to the extent that 
such injury or damage was caused by any negligent act or omission or willful misconduct of 
CUSTOMER or of any person, firm, or corporation, directly or indirectly employed by CUSTOMER 
upon or in connection with its performance under this AGREEMENT.  

7. Safety Program. CONTRACTOR shall provide formal safety instruction on a regular basis for all 
operating personnel assigned to this AGREEMENT.  

8. Independent Contractor. While engaged in carrying out and complying with the terms and conditions 
of this AGREEMENT, CONTRACTOR is an independent contractor, and neither CONTRACTOR, its 
employees or its Agents shall be considered to be an Officer, Agent, or Employee of CUSTOMER.  

9. Assignments. CONTRACTOR may assign or transfer any of its rights, burdens, duties, or obligations 
under this AGREEMENT to its parent company, affiliates, subsidiaries, or related legal entities. 
CONTRACTOR will advise CUSTOMER of such assignment or transfer.  

10. Subcontracting. CONTRACTOR will not subcontract any of its rights, burdens, duties, or obligations 
under this AGREEMENT without the written consent of CUSTOMER, except on a short term, interim 
basis in the event of an emergency. Consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  

11. Force Majeure. CONTRACTOR shall be excused from performance hereunder during the time and to 
the extent that it is prevented from performing in the customary manner by an act of God, fire, flood, 
war, riot, civil disturbance, terrorism, epidemic, quarantine, strike, lockout, labor dispute, oil or fuel 
shortage, freight embargo, rationing or unavailability of materials or products, loss of transportation 
facilities, commandeering of equipment, materials, products, plants, or facilities by the Government, or 
any other occurrence which is beyond the control of CONTRACTOR.  

12. Contractor's Personnel. CONTRACTOR shall employ and assign for services under this 
AGREEMENT a sufficient number of regular and substitute drivers based on projected basic and 
supplementary transportation, taking into account the current driver absence rates. CONTRACTOR 
shall be solely responsible for hiring and discharging its employees. CUSTOMER shall have the right 
to request removal of any of CONTRACTOR’s employees from providing services under this 
AGREEMENT provided that such request is made in writing with the reasons set forth and provided 
that such request does not violate any laws against discrimination.  

13. Payments for Services.  On or about the first business day of each month CONTRACTOR shall submit 
invoices in the form and number required by CUSTOMER for all services performed under this 
AGREEMENT. Payment for such services will be made in check, money order, or ACH or wire 
transfers within a reasonable time thereafter, not to exceed twenty (20) calendar days. Payment by credit 
card is accepted but requires an increase in the invoiced amount of two and one-half percent (2.5%) to 
cover processing fees. In the event sums due and payable are not received within thirty (30) calendar 
days, a late charge of 1.5% per month of the outstanding balance will be assessed upon the account. In 
the event such sums are not received within sixty (60) days, service may be discontinued until such 
time as CONTRACTOR has received all sums due.   

Adjustment of Rates.   

a. The rates set forth in Schedule A shall be adjusted annually. On July 1st in each Agreement year, 
the rates will be adjusted upward by the greater of 2% or the percentage increase in the U. S. City 
Average, Consumer Price Index, All Urban Consumers, as identified by the U.S. Bureau of Labor 
Statistics, for the twelve (12) month period ending June 30th of the following year.   



Agreement#STS2020  
SouthTech Schools  
Transportation Agreement  
  

  3  

b. Notwithstanding any contrary statements in this Agreement or in any documents incorporated 
herein by reference, in the event any federal, state, local or other government body’s statutes, laws, 
rules, or regulations impact CONTRACTOR’s methods and/or costs in connection with the provision 
of services hereunder (e.g., changes in healthcare or other benefits requirements, changes in equipment 
requirements, changes in services requirements, changes in unemployment insurance benefit 
requirements, etc.) during the term of the Agreement, CONTRACTOR, upon written notice to 
CUSTOMER, may request a renegotiation of this Agreement which shall be conducted in good faith. 
Such renegotiations may include, without limitation, changes in rates, term, payment schedules, levels 
of service, and the types or number of vehicles to be used. Any modification to this Agreement resulting 
from such renegotiations shall become effective on a mutually agreed upon date. If the parties cannot 
come to an agreement, either party may terminate the AGREEMENT upon thirty (30) days’ notice.  

14. Equipment Requirements. All buses supplied under this AGREEMENT shall be approved school buses, 
as defined by applicable statutory or administrative codes.  

a. Regular preventive maintenance shall be practiced on all buses. In addition, buses shall be 
cleaned inside and out as necessary.  

b. Spare buses, either CUSTOMER or CONTRACTOR supplied, of appropriate sizes, and 
meeting all the above requirements, shall be located by CONTRACTOR at points close enough 
to CUSTOMER so they may be substituted for regularly assigned buses, if needed, without 
delay.  

c. It is specifically understood between the Parties that prices under this AGREEMENT do not 
include modifications to vehicles that might at some point in the future be required by 
government agencies or CUSTOMER. If, during the term of this AGREEMENT, equipment 
modifications, including seat belts, are mandated, CONTRACTOR and CUSTOMER shall 
negotiate in good faith price increases related to such modifications. Such renegotiations shall 
include, but shall not be limited to, the payment schedule, duration of this AGREEMENT, 
levels of service, etc. Any modification to this AGREEMENT resulting from such 
renegotiations shall become effective on a mutually agreed-upon date.  

15. Fuel. Fuel shall be paid for and provided by CONTRACTOR. Prices provided in the AGREEMENT 
are subject to change due to increased fuel cost. Prices quoted are valid until the cost per gallon exceeds 
$3.34 at that time a 5% temporary fuel surcharge will be implemented.  In the event the price of diesel 
goes above $4.10 per gallon the surcharge will increase another 5%.  In the event the price of diesel 
goes above $5.35 per gallon the surcharge will increase another 5%.    

16. Wage and Hour. In the event market conditions dictate that employee wage increases are necessary, the 
District agrees to enter into negotiations with the Contractor to mitigate the financial impact of any 
increased wages on the Contractor. In the event the District and the Contractor cannot come to a mutual 
agreement, the Contractor has the right to terminate the Agreement.  The Contractor will provide the 
District with ninety (90) days written notice prior to termination.  

17. Notices: Notices to either party to this AGREEMENT shall be in writing and shall be considered duly 
served and delivered if such notice is delivered by hand; mailed via the United States mail, certified, 
return receipt requested; or sent via overnight service. All such notices shall be addressed to:  

  

  CUSTOMER:    SouthTech Schools  
         6161 Woolbright Rd.    

Boynton Beach, FL 33437  



Agreement#STS2020  
SouthTech Schools  
Transportation Agreement  
  

  4  

   

CONTRACTOR:   A&S Transportation, Inc.  
Attn: Contract Administrator  
2601 Navistar Drive, Building Five  
Lisle, IL  60532  

  Telephone:  (630) 821-5400  
  
18. Discipline. CONTRACTOR will report serious or persistent misconduct on the part of students to the 

designated CUSTOMER employee. CUSTOMER shall then impose reasonable disciplinary measures 
upon the students in accordance with its discipline management program.  

19. Choice of Law. This AGREEMENT shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida.  

20. Severability. In the event any provision of this AGREEMENT is determined to be illegal or void, the 
remainder of this AGREEMENT shall remain in full force and effect.  

21. Rate Schedule. In consideration of the performance on the part of CONTRACTOR of the terms of this 
AGREEMENT, CUSTOMER agrees to pay CONTRACTOR the rates set forth on attached Schedule 
A, incorporated herein, for pupil transportation services rendered.  

  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this AGREEMENT as of the date written 
above.  

  

A&S Transportation, Inc.         SouthTech Academy  

  

  
By:   
 By:  
  
   

Name:     
   Name:      

Title:        Title:    Date:       Date:     

      

 

 



Agreement#STS2020  
SouthTech Schools  
Transportation Agreement  
  

 

SCHEDULE A  

   

  

• $269.12/bus/day for each primary (stand-alone) route for a 65-passanger (rated) school bus  
o  The second tier of a route will be billed at $182.77/bus/day

• All bus drivers will have successfully cleared Florida’s Level Two background screening ( Jessica 
Lundsford Act)  

• Larger buses may be available for an additional $25/bus/day  

• Air-conditioning may be available for an additional $25/bus/day  

• Double runs may be available for an additional $35/bus/day  

• Prices will adjust for inflation in accordance with Section 13  

• All start-up costs paid by Contractor are included in the daily rate  

• Routing will be planned, in writing, by A&S    

• Field trips will be billed at $55/hour with a 3-hour minimum  

• A&S Transportation shall submit all District required compliance documents (see Schedule B for 
an example) 10 days prior to the date the document is required   

• A&S Transportation will submit all monthly District required compliance documents (see 
Schedule B for an example) along with each invoice  

•  SouthTech Schools, Inc. will be additionally insured 

• $120/Attendant/day (as required or agreed)   

  



Agreement#STS2020  
SouthTech Schools  
Transportation Agreement  
  

 

1  
  



Governing Board of Directors 
South Tech Charter Academy, Inc. 

 
 

 
 
Motion: 
 
I recommend that the Board approve the grounds maintenance contract with Powell Landscaping 
& Design, Inc.   
 
 
Summary Information: 

 
We are recommending that the Board approve the grounds maintenance contract with Powell 
Landscaping & Design, Inc. for SY21 
 
Powell Landscaping has been servicing SouthTech Academy for 15 years at $300 per cut.  Mr. 
Powell is willing to continue the same cost.  The contract will be reviewed in six months at the 
new site.    
 
Attachments:  Grounds Maintenance contract with Powell Landscaping & Design, Inc. 
            
 
 
Presented By: 
 
Kathryn McInerney, Financial Officer 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
The financial impact is $11,700. 
 

Agenda Item 
C-6 

Board Meeting 
April 30, 2020 



POWELL LANDSCAPING & DESIGN, INC. 
 

P. 0. Box 7266, Delray Beach, Fl 33482 
Phone: (561) 493-2602 ♦ Fax: (561) 493-1554 

powelllandsca70@bellsouth.net 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
South Tech Academy 

GROUNDS MAINTENANCE CONTRACT 



POWELL LANDSCAPING & DESIGN, INC. 
 

P. O. Box 7266, Delray Beach, FL 33482 
Phone: (561) 493-2602 ♦ Fax: (561) 493-1554 

powelllandsca70@bellsouth.net 
 

Grounds Maintenance Services 
 
 

South Tech Academy, Jnc.  
6161 Woolbright Road 
Boynton Beach, FL 33435 

 

June 5, 2020 

 
 

Below is a detailed description of the Grounds Maintenance Schedule that Powell Landscaping & Design, 
Inc. will perform for South Tech Academy, Inc.: 

 
• Grounds will be cut thirty-nine (39) times per year. 
• Shrubs will be trimmed twelve (12) times per year, as needed. 
• All plant bed areas & tree rings will be mechanically & chemically treated for weeds at each 

service visit. 
• Irrigation maintenance & repair will take place only upon request of authorized personnel. 

-Any irrigation repairs will be billed separately. 
• Fertilizations will take place only upon request of authorized personnel. 

 
 

TOTAL AMOUNT PER CUT:      $300.00 
 

TOTAL YEARLY SERVICE COST:    $11,700.00 
 
 

All work will be completed in a workmanlike manner according to standard practices. 
 
 
 

Clifford J. Powell 
Owner/President 
Powell Landscaping & Design, Inc. 



POWELL LANDSCAPING & DESIGN, INC. 
P. 0. Box 7266, Delray Beach, FL 33482 

Phone: (561) 493-2602 ♦ Fax: (561) 493-1554 
powelllandsca70@bellsouth.net 

 

 

Basic Maintenance Service Schedule 
 

Cuts per 
month 

Trimming 
Shrubs 

Chemical &      
Mechanical 
Weeding 

Shrub 
& 

Tree 
Fertilizing 

(upon 
request) 

Lawn 

Fertilizing    

 (upon 

request) 

June-4 
 

X 
 

X   

Jul-4 
 

X 
 

X   

Aug-4 X X   

Sept-4 X X   

Oct-4 X X   

Nov-4 X X   

Dec-2 X X   

Jan-2 X X   

Feb-2 
 

X X   

Mar-3 X X   

Apr-3 X X   

May-3 
 

X X   

A Total of 39 cuts @ $300.00 per cut = $11,700.00 
 

Optional Services: 
 

• Irrigation maintenance and repair $35.00 pmh plus the cost of parts. 
 

Acceptance:   
Initials 

 

• Fertilization once a year, 70 bags of fertilizer @ $28.00 per bag = $1,960.00. 
 

Acceptance:     
Initials 

 
 
 
 
 
 



POWELL LANDSCAPING & DESIGN, INC. 
P. 0. Box 7266, Delray Beach, FL 33482 

Phone: (561) 493-2602 ♦ Fax: (561) 493-1554 
powelllandsca70@bellsouth.net 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Contract Agreement 
 
PROJECT:  Grounds Maintenance  

 
Powell Landscaping & Design Inc. Proposes to: completely furnish all labor and materials in accordance with the 
information listed on the attached proposal and is part of this contract per plans, specification s and all other 
information provided for the above referenced project for South Tech Academy. 

 
This contract agreement supersedes all conditions and/or conflicts in the attached proposal. 

 
South Tech Academy shall pay Powell Landscaping & Design, Inc. for the work proposed, in which any alteration 
or deviation from the specified proposal involving extra costs will be executed only upon a written and signed 
change order by  Authorized Personnel and will become an extra cost over and above this contract agreement. 

 
South Tech Academy will be billed at the beginning of each month for the services provided. 

 
All material is guaranteed to be as specified. All work will be completed in a workmanlike manner according to 
standard practices. 

 
ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL: 

The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are hereby accepted. Powell Landscaping & 
Design, Inc. is authorized to do the work as specified. Payment will be made as outlined above. Once this 
proposal has been signed by both parties, it becomes a contract. 
 
 
 

   DATE OF ACCEPTANCE: _________________________      DATE OF ACCEPTANCE: _______________________ 
 
 
   PRINTED NAME: ________________________________        PRINTED NAME: ______________________________ 
 
 
   SIGNATURE: ____________________________________        SIGNATURE: __________________________________ 
             South Tech Academy Authorized Personnel                                      Powell Landscaping & Design, Inc.  



 

 

SOUTHTECH PREPARATORY ACADEMY, INC. 
CONSENT AGENDA 

April 30, 2020 
 
 

 Old Business 
 None. 
  
 Administrative Items   

             PA-1 I recommend that the Board adopt Policy 1.032 Emergency Policy Relating to 
School Board Meetings. 

  
 Personnel Items  
 None. 
 

Financial Items 
PC-1 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly Charter school  

  bank account reconciliation for the month ending February 29, 2020 as required  
by the Sponsor. 

 PC-2 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the Charter school monthly  
Disbursement Report for the month ending February 29, 2020 as required by the 
Sponsor. 

 PC-3 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly financial statements for  
  the month ending February 29, 2020 as required by the Sponsor. 
 PC-4 I recommend that the Board approve the Amended Transportation Agreement  
  with A&S Transportation, Inc. for SY20. 
            PC-5 I recommend that the Board approve the transportation agreement with A&S 

Transportation, Inc. 
            PC-6 I recommend that the Board approve the Food Services Agreement for FY21 with 

the Sponsor and authorize the Board Chair to sign all related documents. 
 
            Emergency Items 

None. 
 



 Governing Board of Directors 
SouthTech Preparatory Academy, Inc. 

 
 

 
 

Motion: 
 

I recommend that the Board adopt Policy 1.032 Emergency Policy Relating to School Board 
Meetings. 
 
 
 
Summary Information: 
 
I recommend that the Board adopt Policy 1.032 Emergency Policy Relating to School Board 
Meetings due to the imminent danger to the public health, safety, and welfare posed by the 
spread of COVID-19. The Board is taking only the action necessary to protect the public interest. 
This immediate danger requires emergency action and the procedure for the adoption of this 
emergency policy is fair under the circumstances for the reasons stated in the attachment. 
 
 

 
Attachments:  Policy 1.032 Emergency Policy Relating to School Board Meetings 

            
 
 
Presented By: 
 
James Notter, Board Chair 
  
 
Financial Impact: 
 
There is no financial impact associated with this item. 
 

Agenda Item 
PA-1 

Board Meeting 
April 30, 2020 



South Tech Preparatory Academy, Inc. Board Policy 1.032 
 

Emergency Policy Relating to School Board Meetings 
              
 
 
  

1. Purpose. The Board recognizes the need during this health emergency posed by the spread of COVID-19 
to hold virtual or telephonic meetings as set forth in the March 17. 2020 Florida Department of 
Education’s Additional Guidance for the 2019-20 School Year, or for reasons allowed by any subsequent 
Executive Orders, Florida DOE directives, Attorney General Opinions, or Florida Laws (hereinafter referred 
to as “Directives”). 
  

2. Emergency Meetings During This Time. This Policy modifies and supersedes Board Policy 1.03 on 
Board meetings. This Policy is consistent with the Directives to address items during this time and hold 
virtual or telephonic meetings where a quorum of Board members is not required to be physically present at 
the meeting in order to conduct and vote upon business. These meetings must be accessible to interested 
members of the public who wish to attend. 
  

3. Public Comment: In addition, this Policy modifies certain provisions in Policy 1.03 relating to public 
comment and allows public comment on agenda items through the virtual meeting. The meeting Notice 
shall state: 

a. how interested persons can attend virtually and 
  

b. the method (such as telephone number) for public comments to be made verbally and in writing. 
  

4. Authority. This policy supersedes any other policy and Policy 1.03 that is not consistent with the language 
herein relating to these emergency Board meetings. 
  

5. Duration of Policy. This policy becomes effective upon its emergency adoption. This policy shall remain 
effective for 90 days. 

 
  
 
 Authority:  FS 120.54 (4); 120.81 (1); 1001.32 (2); 1001.42 (28). 

 
  Implemented:  FS 120.54 (4); 1001.41 (1) & (3); 1001.42, including (8); 1001.43, including (10); 

1001.48; 1001.49; 1001.51. 
 
   Reference:  Palm Beach School District Policy 1.032 
 
   History:   New: 4/30/20 
 
   

 



Governing Board of Directors 
SouthTech Preparatory Academy, Inc. 

 
 

 
 
Motion: 

 
I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly Charter school bank account 
reconciliation for the month ending February 29, 2020 as required by the Sponsor. 
 
Summary Information: 
 
The Charter school is required to submit to the Sponsor district several financial documents on 
an ongoing basis.  Monthly bank reconciliations are one such requirement.  
 
The Charter school maintains several accounts in order to maximize the earnings potential of the 
funding provided while maintaining liquidity to meet day-to-day operations.  Review of these 
accounts takes place on a daily basis by the Charter business staff.  Monthly reconciliations are 
performed as good accounting practice and published here to fulfill Sponsor requirements. 
 
Attachments: Reconciliation Spreadsheets and Bank Statements  
 
 
 
Presented By: 
 
James Notter, Board Chair 
 
 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
There is no financial impact related to this item.  
 
 
 

Agenda Item 
PC-1 

Board Meeting 
April 30, 2020 

























































Governing Board of Directors 
SouthTech Preparatory Academy, Inc. 

 
 

 
 
Motion: 

 
I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the Charter school monthly Disbursement 
Reports for the month ending February 29, 2020 as required by the Sponsor. 
 
Summary Information: 
 
The Charter school is required to provide several financial documents on an ongoing basis.  
Monthly records of disbursements are a requirement that must be provided to the Board.  
 
The Charter school maintains several accounts in order to maximize the earnings potential of the 
funding.  Each school account is listed separately along with a disbursement record of activity.  
Disbursements are made by warrant, wire transfer, account transfer and use of direct debit card.   
Processing of disbursements takes place on a daily basis by the Charter business staff.  All 
disbursements are reviewed and approved by the Board Chair.  All warrants have two 
signatories. 
 
Attachments: Disbursement Report  
 
 
Presented By: 
 
James Notter, Board Chair 
 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
There is no financial impact related to this item.   
 
 
 

Agenda Item 
PC-2 

Board Meeting 
April 30, 2020 





Governing Board of Directors 
SouthTech Preparatory Academy, Inc. 

 
 
Motion: 

 
I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly financial statements for the month 
ending February 29, 2020 required by the Sponsor. 
 
Summary Information: 

 
The State statutes and the Palm Beach County School District require charter schools to provide 
financial statements on a monthly basis in the format that School Districts are required to follow.  
This format is  prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 
 
The monthly statements include: 

1. Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget to Actual 
2. The combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance  
3. A Combined Balance Sheet – All Fund Types 

 
Quarterly, a Statement of Net Assets is also required.  This is provided in March, June, 
September and December. 
 
 
Attachments:  Monthly Financial Statements  
 
Presented By: 
 
James Notter, Board Chair 
  
 
Financial Impact: 
 
There is no financial impact for this item. 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 
PC-3 

Board Meeting 
April 30, 2020 



Accounts General Fund

Special 

Revenue Fund Debt Service Capital Outlay

Total 

Governmental 

Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 1110 542,927$         -$                 -$                 -$                 542,927$         

Investments 1160 -                   

Grant receivables 1130 21,243             21,243             

Other current assets 12XX 61,166             61,166             

Deposits 1210 87,400             87,400             

Due from other funds 1140 -                   

Other long-term assets 1400 -                   

Total Assets 712,736$         -$                 -$                 -$                 712,736$         

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities

Accounts payable 2120 32,717$           -$                 -$                 -$                 32,717$           

Salaries, benefits, and payroll taxes payable 2110, 2170, 2330 32,683             32,683             

Deferred revenue 2410 -                   

Notes/bonds payable 2180, 2250, 2310, 2320 -                   

Lease payable 2315 -                   

Other liabilities 21XX, 22XX, 23XX 30,448             30,448             

Total Liabilities 95,848             -                   -                   -                   95,848             

Fund Balance

Nonspendable 2710 148,566           148,566           

Restricted 2720 -                   

Committed 2730 -                   

Assigned 2740 92,682             92,682             

Unassigned 2750 375,640           375,640           

Total Fund Balance 616,888           -                   -                   -                   616,888           

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 712,736$         -$                 -$                 -$                 712,736$         

Palm Beach County, Florida

For the Month Ended February 29, 2020 and For the Year Ending June 30, 2020

  February 29, 2020   

South Tech Prep Academy with MSID Number 3441

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Monthly Financial Form



FTE Projected 531

FTE Actual 536 101% Percent of Projected

Account 

Number

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual  Annual Budget 

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Revenues

FEDERAL SOURCES 

    Federal direct 3100 -$                 -$                 -$                 % -$                 -$                 -                   %

    Federal through state and local 3200 18,293              170,950            309,152            55%

STATE SOURCES 

    FEFP 3310 257,449            2,168,628         3,233,076         67%

    Capital outlay 3397 -                   

    Class size reduction 3355 39,942              333,108            497,744            67%

    School recognition 3361

    Other state revenue 33XX -                   61,327              77,552              79%

LOCAL SOURCES

    Interest 3430 56                    696                  1,100                63%

    Local capital improvement tax 3413

    Other local revenue 34XX 12,122              95,935              135,691            71%

Total Revenues 309,569            2,659,694         3,945,163         67% 18,293              170,950            309,152            55%

Expenditures

Current Expenditures

Instruction 5000 143,934            1,072,018         1,829,028         59% 18,113              100,405            181,639            55%

Instructional support services 6000 24,402              193,411            276,623            70% 13,719              85,905              121,093            71%

Board 7100 1,283                19,809              27,720              71%

General administration 7200 7,152                93,645              124,940            75%

School administration 7300 33,246              275,070            426,073            65%

Facilities and acquisition 7400 -                   6,420                6,420                100%

Fiscal services 7500 7,629                54,789              86,038              64%

Food services 7600

Central services 7700 4,292                36,830              57,504              64%

Pupil transportation services 7800 30,812              194,600            303,000            64%

Operation of plant 7900 72,881              565,258            830,828            68%

Maintenance of plant 8100 5,198                37,540              55,582              68%

Administrative technology services 8200 5,269                46,466              72,725              64%

Community services 9100 11,917              45,143              100,000            45%

Debt service 9200

Total Expenditures 348,015            2,634,579         4,190,061         63% 31,832              192,730            309,152            62%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures (38,446)            25,115              (244,898)          -10% (13,539)            (21,780)            -                   

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in 3600 21,243              182,140            361,000            13,539              21,780              

Transfers out 9700 (13,539)            (21,780)            -                   -                   

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 7,704                160,360            361,000            44% 13,539              21,780              -                   

Net Change in Fund Balances (30,742)            185,475            116,102            -                   -                   -                   

Fund balances, beginning 647,630            454,935            454,935            100%

Adjustments to beginning fund balance -                   (23,522)            

Fund Balances, Beginning as Restated 647,630            431,413            454,935            95% -                   -                   -                   

          616,888$          616,888$          571,037            108% -$                 -$                 -                   %

For the Month Ended February 29, 2020 and For the Year Ending June 30, 2020

South Tech Prep Academy with MSID Number (3441)

Palm Beach County, Florida

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Unaudited)

General Fund Special Revenue



Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

 Month/ 

Quarter Actual  YTD Actual  Annual Budget 

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

-$                 -$                 -$                 % -$                 -$                 -$                 % -                   -                   -                   %

18,293              170,950            309,152            55%

257,449            2,168,628         3,233,076         67%

21,243              182,140            280,648            65% 21,243              182,140            280,648            65%

39,942              333,108            497,744            67%

-                   -                   -                   

-                   61,327              77,552              79%

56                    696                  1,100                63%

% -                   -                   -                   

12,122              95,935              135,691            71%

-                   -                   -                   21,243              182,140            280,648            65% 349,105            3,012,784         4,534,963         66%

162,047            1,172,423         2,010,667         58%

38,121              279,316            397,716            70%

1,283                19,809              27,720              71%

7,152                93,645              124,940            75%

33,246              275,070            426,073            65%

-                   6,420                6,420                100%

7,629                54,789              86,038              64%

-                   -                   -                   

4,292                36,830              57,504              64%

 30,812              194,600            303,000            64%

72,881              565,258            830,828            68%

5,198                37,540              55,582              68%

5,269                46,466              72,725              64%

11,917              45,143              100,000            45%

-                   -                   -                   

-                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   379,847            2,827,309         4,499,213         63%

-                   -                   -                   21,243              182,140            280,648            65% (30,742)            185,475            35,750              519%

34,782              203,920            361,000             

(21,243)            (182,140)          (361,000)          (34,782)            (203,920)          (361,000)           

-                   -                   -                   (21,243)            (182,140)          (361,000)          -                   -                   -                   

-                   -                   -                   -                   -                   (30,742)            185,475            35,750               

647,630            454,935            454,935            100%

-                   (23,522)            -                   

-                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   647,630            431,413            454,935            95%

-$                 -$                 -$                 % -$                 -$                 -$                 % 616,888$          616,888$          490,685$          126%

Debt Service Capital Outlay Total Governmental Funds



Governing Board of Directors 
South Tech Preparatory Academy, Inc. 

 
 

 
 
Motion: 
 
I recommend that the Board approve the Amended Transportation Agreement with A&S 
Transportation, Inc. for SY20.  
 
 
Summary Information: 

 
We are recommending that the Board approve the Amended Transportation Agreement with 
A&S Transportation, Inc. for SY20.  
 
 
Attachments:  A&S Transportation, Inc. Amended Transportation Agreement SY20. 
            
 
 
Presented By: 
 
Kathryn McInerney, Financial Officer 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
There is no financial impact for this item. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
PC-4 

Board Meeting 
April 30, 2020 



AMMENDMENT 1  

  

This AMMENDMENT 1 (“Agreement”) is made and effective 4/10/20.  

  

BETWEEN:  A&S Transportation, Inc., a corporation organized and existing under laws of the State of Florida, with 

its head office located at:  

2601 Navistar Drive Lisle, 

IL  60532  

  

AND:      SouthTech Academy with a principal place of business located at:  

1300 SW 30th Ave.  

Boynton Beach, FL  33426   

In consideration of the mutual covenants contained in this agreement, the parties agree as follows:  

  

WHEREIN said Agreement expires on June 30, 2020, and the parties desire to extend the relationship under a new 

contract; it is provided that A&S Transportation, Inc. will waive the CPI increase it is entitled to for the 2019/20 

school year.  All invoices and charges will be re‐issued to remove the CPI and apply credits as necessary.  

SouthTech Academy agrees to expedite payment of the new invoices.  

  

SouthTech Academy further agrees to the new contract for transportation services from 2020‐2023.  

  

  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this agreement on ______________, 2020.  

CUSTOMER                     CONTRACTOR  

_____________________________            _____________________________  

Authorized Signature                  Authorized Signature  

  

_____________________________            _____________________________  

Printed name and title                Printed name and title   



Governing Board of Directors 
South Tech Preparatory Academy, Inc. 

 
 

 
 
Motion: 
 
I recommend that the Board approve the transportation agreement with A&S Transportation, Inc.   
 
 
Summary Information: 

 
We are recommending that the Board approve the transportation agreement with A&S 
Transportation, Inc. for SY21, SY22 and SY23. 
 
 
Attachments:  A&S Transportation, Inc. Agreement to Transport Pupils SY21-23. 
            
 
 
Presented By: 
 
Kathryn McInerney, Financial Officer 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
The financial impact is $327,244 for STP. It is a three-year contract with an increase of 2% or 
the CPI, whichever is greater. It is an increase of 2.6% over SY19 contract prices.  There was no 
increase for SY20. 
 
 

Agenda Item 
PC-5 

Board Meeting 
April 30, 2020 



Agreement#STS2020  
SouthTech Schools  
Transportation Agreement  
  

  1  

AGREEMENT FOR THE TRANSPORTATION OF PUPILS  
  

This AGREEMENT FOR THE TRANSPORTATION OF PUPILS, hereinafter referred to as the  
“AGREEMENT”, is made and entered into this _____ day of ________, 20__, by and between SouthTech 
Schools, Inc. with a principal office located at 6161 Woolbright Rd.  Boynton Beach, FL 33437, hereinafter 
referred to as “CUSTOMER”, and A&S TRANSPORTATION, INC., a Florida corporation, with its 
principal office located at 2601 Navistar Drive, Lisle, Illinois 60532, hereinafter referred to as  
“CONTRACTOR.”  

1. Scope of Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall operate and maintain daily route school buses for the 
transportation of pupils using vehicles provided by CONTRACTOR. The CONTRACTOR shall 
provide daily service for CUSTOMER including home to school and school to home services, and such 
other transportation including but not limited to transportation to and from extracurricular events, 
providing equipment, storage and maintenance thereof; providing employees to perform such services; 
and administrative, supervisory and operational services required thereby ("Work") based on the 
assumptions and at the rates set forth on Schedule A.  

2. Term. The term of this AGREEMENT shall be for a period of three (3) years beginning July 1, 2020. 
This AGREEMENT shall be renewable for two (2) additional terms of two (2) year, at the option and 
mutual written agreement of both parties, taking into consideration CONTRACTOR’S performance 
under this AGREEMENT and cost negotiations, and subject to applicable statutes and regulations.  

3. Document Agreement. This AGREEMENT contains all the terms and conditions agreed upon by the 
parties.  It supersedes any and all previous agreements, oral or written, between the parties, and no other 
agreement regarding the subject matter of this Contract, or any part thereof, shall have any validity or 
bind the parties.  

4. Permits and Licenses. CONTRACTOR, its employees, and its agents shall secure and maintain valid 
permits, licenses, and certifications as required by law for the execution of this AGREEMENT.  

5. Insurance. CONTRACTOR shall maintain insurance as set forth below during this AGREEMENT 
period and shall furnish a certificate of insurance for General and Auto Liability coverage and for 
Workers' Compensation coverage. CONTRACTOR shall furnish new Certificates of Insurance for 
liability coverage and for Workers' Compensation coverage within thirty (30) days following the 
placement of new or renewed coverage. Certificates shall provide that a thirty (30) day prior notice of 
cancellation will be given to CUSTOMER.  

General and Auto Liability insurance shall be maintained to protect CONTRACTOR from any claims 
from damages for personal injury or death, and from damage to property, which may arise from 
operations of CONTRACTOR under this AGREEMENT. General and Auto Liability insurance shall 
each have a combined single limit of Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000). Workers' Compensation 
insurance shall be maintained as required by law and to protect CONTRACTOR from claims, which 
may arise from its operation under this AGREEMENT.  

6. Hold Harmless Agreement. CONTRACTOR shall hold harmless and indemnify CUSTOMER, its 
Governing Board, Officers, Agents, and Employees from every claim or demand which may be made 
by reason of any injury to person or damage to property sustained by any person, firm or corporation, 
to the extent that such injury or damage was caused by any negligent act or omission or willful 
misconduct of CONTRACTOR or of any person, firm, or corporation, directly or indirectly employed 
by CONTRACTOR upon or in connection with its performance under this AGREEMENT.  



Agreement#STS2020  
SouthTech Schools  
Transportation Agreement  
  

  2  

To the extent permissible by law, CUSTOMER shall hold harmless and indemnify CONTRACTOR, 
its Officers, Agents, and Employees from every claim or demand which may be made by reason of any 
injury to person or damage to property sustained by any person, firm or corporation, to the extent that 
such injury or damage was caused by any negligent act or omission or willful misconduct of 
CUSTOMER or of any person, firm, or corporation, directly or indirectly employed by CUSTOMER 
upon or in connection with its performance under this AGREEMENT.  

7. Safety Program. CONTRACTOR shall provide formal safety instruction on a regular basis for all 
operating personnel assigned to this AGREEMENT.  

8. Independent Contractor. While engaged in carrying out and complying with the terms and conditions 
of this AGREEMENT, CONTRACTOR is an independent contractor, and neither CONTRACTOR, its 
employees or its Agents shall be considered to be an Officer, Agent, or Employee of CUSTOMER.  

9. Assignments. CONTRACTOR may assign or transfer any of its rights, burdens, duties, or obligations 
under this AGREEMENT to its parent company, affiliates, subsidiaries, or related legal entities. 
CONTRACTOR will advise CUSTOMER of such assignment or transfer.  

10. Subcontracting. CONTRACTOR will not subcontract any of its rights, burdens, duties, or obligations 
under this AGREEMENT without the written consent of CUSTOMER, except on a short term, interim 
basis in the event of an emergency. Consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.  

11. Force Majeure. CONTRACTOR shall be excused from performance hereunder during the time and to 
the extent that it is prevented from performing in the customary manner by an act of God, fire, flood, 
war, riot, civil disturbance, terrorism, epidemic, quarantine, strike, lockout, labor dispute, oil or fuel 
shortage, freight embargo, rationing or unavailability of materials or products, loss of transportation 
facilities, commandeering of equipment, materials, products, plants, or facilities by the Government, or 
any other occurrence which is beyond the control of CONTRACTOR.  

12. Contractor's Personnel. CONTRACTOR shall employ and assign for services under this 
AGREEMENT a sufficient number of regular and substitute drivers based on projected basic and 
supplementary transportation, taking into account the current driver absence rates. CONTRACTOR 
shall be solely responsible for hiring and discharging its employees. CUSTOMER shall have the right 
to request removal of any of CONTRACTOR’s employees from providing services under this 
AGREEMENT provided that such request is made in writing with the reasons set forth and provided 
that such request does not violate any laws against discrimination.  

13. Payments for Services.  On or about the first business day of each month CONTRACTOR shall submit 
invoices in the form and number required by CUSTOMER for all services performed under this 
AGREEMENT. Payment for such services will be made in check, money order, or ACH or wire 
transfers within a reasonable time thereafter, not to exceed twenty (20) calendar days. Payment by credit 
card is accepted but requires an increase in the invoiced amount of two and one-half percent (2.5%) to 
cover processing fees. In the event sums due and payable are not received within thirty (30) calendar 
days, a late charge of 1.5% per month of the outstanding balance will be assessed upon the account. In 
the event such sums are not received within sixty (60) days, service may be discontinued until such 
time as CONTRACTOR has received all sums due.   

Adjustment of Rates.   

a. The rates set forth in Schedule A shall be adjusted annually. On July 1st in each Agreement year, 
the rates will be adjusted upward by the greater of 2% or the percentage increase in the U. S. City 
Average, Consumer Price Index, All Urban Consumers, as identified by the U.S. Bureau of Labor 
Statistics, for the twelve (12) month period ending June 30th of the following year.   



Agreement#STS2020  
SouthTech Schools  
Transportation Agreement  
  

  3  

b. Notwithstanding any contrary statements in this Agreement or in any documents incorporated 
herein by reference, in the event any federal, state, local or other government body’s statutes, laws, 
rules, or regulations impact CONTRACTOR’s methods and/or costs in connection with the provision 
of services hereunder (e.g., changes in healthcare or other benefits requirements, changes in equipment 
requirements, changes in services requirements, changes in unemployment insurance benefit 
requirements, etc.) during the term of the Agreement, CONTRACTOR, upon written notice to 
CUSTOMER, may request a renegotiation of this Agreement which shall be conducted in good faith. 
Such renegotiations may include, without limitation, changes in rates, term, payment schedules, levels 
of service, and the types or number of vehicles to be used. Any modification to this Agreement resulting 
from such renegotiations shall become effective on a mutually agreed upon date. If the parties cannot 
come to an agreement, either party may terminate the AGREEMENT upon thirty (30) days’ notice.  

14. Equipment Requirements. All buses supplied under this AGREEMENT shall be approved school buses, 
as defined by applicable statutory or administrative codes.  

a. Regular preventive maintenance shall be practiced on all buses. In addition, buses shall be 
cleaned inside and out as necessary.  

b. Spare buses, either CUSTOMER or CONTRACTOR supplied, of appropriate sizes, and 
meeting all the above requirements, shall be located by CONTRACTOR at points close enough 
to CUSTOMER so they may be substituted for regularly assigned buses, if needed, without 
delay.  

c. It is specifically understood between the Parties that prices under this AGREEMENT do not 
include modifications to vehicles that might at some point in the future be required by 
government agencies or CUSTOMER. If, during the term of this AGREEMENT, equipment 
modifications, including seat belts, are mandated, CONTRACTOR and CUSTOMER shall 
negotiate in good faith price increases related to such modifications. Such renegotiations shall 
include, but shall not be limited to, the payment schedule, duration of this AGREEMENT, 
levels of service, etc. Any modification to this AGREEMENT resulting from such 
renegotiations shall become effective on a mutually agreed-upon date.  

15. Fuel. Fuel shall be paid for and provided by CONTRACTOR. Prices provided in the AGREEMENT 
are subject to change due to increased fuel cost. Prices quoted are valid until the cost per gallon exceeds 
$3.34 at that time a 5% temporary fuel surcharge will be implemented.  In the event the price of diesel 
goes above $4.10 per gallon the surcharge will increase another 5%.  In the event the price of diesel 
goes above $5.35 per gallon the surcharge will increase another 5%.    

16. Wage and Hour. In the event market conditions dictate that employee wage increases are necessary, the 
District agrees to enter into negotiations with the Contractor to mitigate the financial impact of any 
increased wages on the Contractor. In the event the District and the Contractor cannot come to a mutual 
agreement, the Contractor has the right to terminate the Agreement.  The Contractor will provide the 
District with ninety (90) days written notice prior to termination.  

17. Notices: Notices to either party to this AGREEMENT shall be in writing and shall be considered duly 
served and delivered if such notice is delivered by hand; mailed via the United States mail, certified, 
return receipt requested; or sent via overnight service. All such notices shall be addressed to:  

  

  CUSTOMER:    SouthTech Schools  
         6161 Woolbright Rd.    

Boynton Beach, FL 33437  



Agreement#STS2020  
SouthTech Schools  
Transportation Agreement  
  

  4  

   

CONTRACTOR:   A&S Transportation, Inc.  
Attn: Contract Administrator  
2601 Navistar Drive, Building Five  
Lisle, IL  60532  

  Telephone:  (630) 821-5400  
  
18. Discipline. CONTRACTOR will report serious or persistent misconduct on the part of students to the 

designated CUSTOMER employee. CUSTOMER shall then impose reasonable disciplinary measures 
upon the students in accordance with its discipline management program.  

19. Choice of Law. This AGREEMENT shall be governed by the laws of the State of Florida.  

20. Severability. In the event any provision of this AGREEMENT is determined to be illegal or void, the 
remainder of this AGREEMENT shall remain in full force and effect.  

21. Rate Schedule. In consideration of the performance on the part of CONTRACTOR of the terms of this 
AGREEMENT, CUSTOMER agrees to pay CONTRACTOR the rates set forth on attached Schedule 
A, incorporated herein, for pupil transportation services rendered.  

  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this AGREEMENT as of the date written 
above.  

  

A&S Transportation, Inc.         SouthTech Academy  

  

  
By:   
 By:  
  
   

Name:     
   Name:      

Title:        Title:    Date:       Date:     

      

 

 



Agreement#STS2020  
SouthTech Schools  
Transportation Agreement  
  

 

SCHEDULE A  

   

  

• $269.12/bus/day for each primary (stand-alone) route for a 65-passanger (rated) school bus  
o  The second tier of a route will be billed at $182.77/bus/day

• All bus drivers will have successfully cleared Florida’s Level Two background screening ( Jessica 
Lundsford Act)  

• Larger buses may be available for an additional $25/bus/day  

• Air-conditioning may be available for an additional $25/bus/day  

• Double runs may be available for an additional $35/bus/day  

• Prices will adjust for inflation in accordance with Section 13  

• All start-up costs paid by Contractor are included in the daily rate  

• Routing will be planned, in writing, by A&S    

• Field trips will be billed at $55/hour with a 3-hour minimum  

• A&S Transportation shall submit all District required compliance documents (see Schedule B for 
an example) 10 days prior to the date the document is required   

• A&S Transportation will submit all monthly District required compliance documents (see 
Schedule B for an example) along with each invoice  

•  SouthTech Schools, Inc. will be additionally insured 

• $120/Attendant/day (as required or agreed)   

  



Agreement#STS2020  
SouthTech Schools  
Transportation Agreement  
  

 

1  
  



Governing Board of Directors 
SouthTech Preparatory Academy, Inc. 

 
 

 
 
Motion: 

 
I recommend that the Board approve the Food Services Agreement for FY21 with the Sponsor 
and authorize the Board Chair to sign all related documents. 
 
 
Summary Information: 

 
This is a continuation of ongoing operations with the Sponsor.  The contract is renewed on an 
annual basis. 
 
Attachments:  Charter School Food Service Agreement FY21 
 
 
 
Presented By: 
 
James Notter, Board Chair 
 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
There is no financial impact for this item for the school, as operating revenues offset expenses. 
 

Agenda Item 
PC-6 

Board Meeting 
April 30, 2020 



























 

 

 
SOUTHTECH SUCCESS CENTER, INC. 

CONSENT AGENDA 
April 30, 2020 

 
 
Old Business 
None. 
 
Administrative Items   
SCA-1 I recommend that the Board adopt Policy 1.032 Emergency Policy Relating to   

School Board Meetings. 
             
 Personnel Items  
 None. 
 

Financial Items 
SCC-1 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly Charter school  

  bank account reconciliation for the month ending February 29, 2020 as required  
by the Sponsor. 

 SCC-2 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the Charter school monthly  
Disbursement Report for the month ending February 29, 2020 as required by the 
Sponsor. 

 SCC-3 I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly financial statements for  
  the month ending February 29, 2020 as required by the Sponsor. 
 
            Emergency Items 
            None. 
 



 Governing Board of Directors 
SouthTech Success Center, Inc. 

 
 

 
 

Motion: 
 

I recommend that the Board adopt Policy 1.032 Emergency Policy Relating to School Board 
Meetings. 
 
 
 
Summary Information: 
 
I recommend that the Board adopt Policy 1.032 Emergency Policy Relating to School Board 
Meetings due to the imminent danger to the public health, safety, and welfare posed by the 
spread of COVID-19. The Board is taking only the action necessary to protect the public interest. 
This immediate danger requires emergency action and the procedure for the adoption of this 
emergency policy is fair under the circumstances for the reasons stated in the attachment. 
 
 

 
Attachments:  Policy 1.032 Emergency Policy Relating to School Board Meetings 

            
 
 
Presented By: 
 
James Notter, Board Chair 
  
 
Financial Impact: 
 
There is no financial impact associated with this item. 
 

Agenda Item 
SCA-1 

Board Meeting 
April 30, 2020 



South Tech Success Center, Inc. Board Policy 1.032 
 

Emergency Policy Relating to School Board Meetings 
              
 
 
  

1. Purpose. The Board recognizes the need during this health emergency posed by the spread of COVID-19 
to hold virtual or telephonic meetings as set forth in the March 17. 2020 Florida Department of 
Education’s Additional Guidance for the 2019-20 School Year, or for reasons allowed by any subsequent 
Executive Orders, Florida DOE directives, Attorney General Opinions, or Florida Laws (hereinafter referred 
to as “Directives”). 
  

2. Emergency Meetings During This Time. This Policy modifies and supersedes Board Policy 1.03 on 
Board meetings. This Policy is consistent with the Directives to address items during this time and hold 
virtual or telephonic meetings where a quorum of Board members is not required to be physically present at 
the meeting in order to conduct and vote upon business. These meetings must be accessible to interested 
members of the public who wish to attend. 
  

3. Public Comment: In addition, this Policy modifies certain provisions in Policy 1.03 relating to public 
comment and allows public comment on agenda items through the virtual meeting. The meeting Notice 
shall state: 

a. how interested persons can attend virtually and 
  

b. the method (such as telephone number) for public comments to be made verbally and in writing. 
  

4. Authority. This policy supersedes any other policy and Policy 1.03 that is not consistent with the language 
herein relating to these emergency Board meetings. 
  

5. Duration of Policy. This policy becomes effective upon its emergency adoption. This policy shall remain 
effective for 90 days. 

 
  
 
 Authority:  FS 120.54 (4); 120.81 (1); 1001.32 (2); 1001.42 (28). 

 
  Implemented:  FS 120.54 (4); 1001.41 (1) & (3); 1001.42, including (8); 1001.43, including (10); 

1001.48; 1001.49; 1001.51. 
 
   Reference:  Palm Beach School District Policy 1.032 
 
   History:   New: 4/30/20 
 
   

 



Governing Board of Directors 
SouthTech Success Center, Inc. 

 
 

 
 
Motion: 

 
I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly Charter school bank account 
reconciliation for the month ending February 29, 2020 as required by the Sponsor. 
 
Summary Information: 
 
The Charter school is required to submit to the Sponsor district several financial documents on 
an ongoing basis.  Monthly bank reconciliations are one such requirement.  
 
The Charter school maintains several accounts in order to maximize the earnings potential of the 
funding provided while maintaining liquidity to meet day-to-day operations.  Review of these 
accounts takes place on a daily basis by the Charter business staff.  Monthly reconciliations are 
performed as good accounting practice and published here to fulfill Sponsor requirements. 
 
Attachments: Reconciliation Spreadsheets and Bank Statements  
 
 
 
Presented By: 
 
James Notter, Board Chair 
 
 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
There is no financial impact related to this item.  
 
 

Agenda Item 
SCC-1 

Board Meeting 
April 30, 2020 











































Governing Board of Directors 
SouthTech Success Center, Inc. 

 
 

 
 
Motion: 

 
I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the Charter school monthly Disbursement 
Reports for the month ending February 29, 2020 as required by the Sponsor. 
 
Summary Information: 
 
The Charter school is required to provide several financial documents on an ongoing basis.  
Monthly records of disbursements are a requirement that must be provided to the Board.  
 
The Charter school maintains several accounts in order to maximize the earnings potential of the 
funding.  Each school account is listed separately along with a disbursement record of activity.  
Disbursements are made by warrant, wire transfer, account transfer and use of direct debit card.   
Processing of disbursements takes place on a daily basis by the Charter business staff.  All 
disbursements are reviewed and approved by the Board Chair.  All warrants have two 
signatories. 
 
Attachments: Disbursement Report  
 
 
Presented By: 
 
James Notter, Board Chair 
 
 
Financial Impact: 
 
There is no financial impact related to this item.   
 
 
 

Agenda Item 
SCC-2 

Board Meeting 
April 30, 2020 





Governing Board of Directors 
SouthTech Success Center, Inc. 

 
 

 
 
Motion: 

 
I recommend that the Board approve and ratify the monthly financial statements for the month 
ending February 29, 2020 required by the Sponsor. 
 
Summary Information: 

 
The State statutes and the Palm Beach County School District require charter schools to provide 
financial statements on a monthly basis in the format that School Districts are required to follow.  
This format is  prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB). 
 
The monthly statements include: 

1. Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance Budget to Actual 
2. The combined Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance  
3. A Combined Balance Sheet – All Fund Types 

 
Quarterly, a Statement of Net Assets is also required.  This is provided in March, June, 
September and December. 
 
 
Attachments:  Monthly Financial Statements  
 
Presented By: 
 
James Notter, Board Chair 
  
 
Financial Impact: 
 
There is no financial impact for this item. 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 
SCC-3 

Board Meeting 
April 30, 2020 



Accounts General Fund

Special 

Revenue Fund Debt Service Capital Outlay

Total 

Governmental 

Funds

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 1110 15,955$           -$                 -$                 -$                 15,955$           

Investments 1160 -                   

Grant receivables 1130 37,498             37,498             

Other current assets 12XX 12,507             12,507             

Deposits 1210 -                   

Due from other funds 1140 -                   

Other long-term assets 1400 -                   

Total Assets 65,960$           -$                 -$                 -$                 65,960$           

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE

Liabilities

Accounts payable 2120 2,680$             -$                 -$                 -$                 2,680$             

Salaries, benefits, and payroll taxes payable 2110, 2170, 2330 -                   -                   

Deferred revenue 2410 -                   

Notes/bonds payable 2180, 2250, 2310, 2320 -                   

Lease payable 2315 -                   

Other liabilities 21XX, 22XX, 23XX 120,400           120,400           

Total Liabilities 123,080           -                   -                   -                   123,080           

Fund Balance

Nonspendable 2710 12,507             12,507             

Restricted 2720 -                   

Committed 2730 -                   

Assigned 2740 -                   -                   

Unassigned 2750 (69,627)            (69,627)            

Total Fund Balance (57,120)            -                   -                   -                   (57,120)            

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCE 65,960$           -$                 -$                 -$                 65,960$           

Palm Beach County, Florida

For the Month Ended February 29, 2020 and For the Year Ending June 30, 2020

  February 29, 2020   

SouthTech Success Center with MSID Number 4121

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Monthly Financial Form



FTE Projected 90

FTE Actual 88 98% Percent of Projected

Account 

Number

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual  Annual Budget 

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Revenues

FEDERAL SOURCES 

    Federal direct 3100 -$                 -$                 -$                 % -$                 -$                 -                   %

    Federal through state and local 3200 21,530              139,344            69,078              202%

STATE SOURCES 

    FEFP 3310 49,026              334,894            578,218            58%

    Capital outlay 3397 -                   

    Class size reduction 3355 6,141                52,255              84,730              62%

    School recognition 3361

    Other state revenue 33XX -                   9,765                1,280                763%

LOCAL SOURCES

    Interest 3430 6                      46                    100                  46%

    Local capital improvement tax 3413

    Other local revenue 34XX 10                    210                  1,000                21%

Total Revenues 55,183              397,170            665,328            60% 21,530              139,344            69,078              202%

Expenditures

Current Expenditures

Instruction 5000 14,637              131,202            238,617            55% 6,121                172,347            41,447              416%

Instructional support services 6000 2,548                17,479              34,037              51% 94                    11,790              27,631              43%

Board 7100 33                    2,928                9,860                30%

General administration 7200 2,758                27,492              41,282              67% -                   6,689                

School administration 7300 14,816              100,576            151,103            67% -                   11,985              -                   

Facilities and acquisition 7400

Fiscal services 7500 1,706                13,174              19,952              66%

Food services 7600

Central services 7700 1,658                13,705              17,366              79%

Pupil transportation services 7800 6,216                39,256              70,000              56%

Operation of plant 7900 4,048                42,850              63,200              68%

Maintenance of plant 8100 -                   -                   800                  0%

Administrative technology services 8200 -                   1,760                2,260                78%

Community services 9100 14                    401                  1,000                40%

Debt service 9200

Total Expenditures 48,434              390,823            649,477            60% 6,215                202,811            69,078              294%

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures 6,749                6,347                15,851              40% 15,315              (63,467)            -                   

Other Financing Sources (Uses)

Transfers in 3600 15,315              -                   -                   -                   63,467              

Transfers out 9700 -                   (63,467)            (15,315)            -                   

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 15,315              (63,467)            -                   (15,315)            63,467              -                   

Net Change in Fund Balances 22,064              (57,120)            15,851              -                   -                   -                   

Fund balances, beginning (79,184)            -                   -                   

Adjustments to beginning fund balance -                   

Fund Balances, Beginning as Restated (79,184)            -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

Fund Balances, Ending (57,120)$          (57,120)$          15,851              -360% -$                 -$                 -                   %

For the Month Ended February 29, 2020 and For the Year Ending June 30, 2020

SouthTech Success Center with MSID Number (4121)

Palm Beach County, Florida

Statement of Revenue, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance (Unaudited)

General Fund Special Revenue



Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

Month/ Quarter 

Actual YTD Actual Annual Budget

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

 Month/ 

Quarter Actual  YTD Actual  Annual Budget 

% of YTD

Actual to

Annual Budget

-$                 -$                 -$                 % -$                 -$                 -$                 % -                   -                   -                   %

21,530              139,344            69,078              202%

49,026              334,894            578,218            58%

-                   -                   -                   % -                   -                   -                   

6,141                52,255              84,730              62%

-                   -                   -                   

-                   9,765                1,280                763%

6                      46                    100                  46%

% -                   -                   -                   

10                    210                  1,000                21%

-                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   76,713              536,514            734,406            73%

20,758              303,549            280,064            108%

2,642                29,269              61,668              47%

33                    2,928                9,860                30%

2,758                34,181              41,282              83%

14,816              112,561            151,103            74%

-                   -                   -                   

1,706                13,174              19,952              66%

-                   -                   -                   

1,658                13,705              17,366              79%

 6,216                39,256              70,000              56%

4,048                42,850              63,200              68%

-                   -                   800                  0%

-                   1,760                2,260                78%

14                    401                  1,000                40%

-                   -                   -                   

-                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   54,649              593,634            718,554            83%

-                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   22,064              (57,120)            15,852              -360%

15,315              63,467              -                    

-                   -                   -                   (15,315)            (63,467)            -                    

-                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   

-                   -                   -                   -                   -                   22,064              (57,120)            15,852               

(79,184)            -                   -                   

-                   -                   -                   

-                   -                   -                   -                   -                   -                   (79,184)            -                   -                   

-$                 -$                 -$                 % -$                 -$                 -$                 % (57,120)$          (57,120)$          15,852$            -360%

Debt Service Capital Outlay Total Governmental Funds


	Cover Sheet Board Member Packet 04-30-2020
	STA-STPA-STSC Emergency Governing Board Agenda 04-30-20
	STA-STPA-STSC Regular Governing Board Minutes 03-12-20
	STA Consent Agenda 04-30-2020
	Item A-1 04-30-20 Policy 1.032 Emergency Policy Relating to School Board Meetings
	Item A-1 Backup Policy 1.032 Emergency Policy Relating to School Board Meetings
	Item C-1 04-30-20 STA Bank Reconciliation February 29, 2020
	Item C-1A Backup STA Operating Feb20 (1)
	Item C-1B Backup STA Internal Feb20
	Item C-1C Backup STA MMA Feb20
	Item C-2 04-30-20 STA Disbursements February 29, 2020
	Item C-2 Backup STA Disbursements Feb20
	Item C-3 04-30-20 STA Monthly Fiancial Statements February 29, 2020
	Item C-3 Backup South Tech (1571) Financial Statements February 2020
	Item C-4 04-30-20 STA A&S Amended Transportation Agreement SY20
	Item C-4 Backup A & S Transportation Amendment SY20
	Item C-5 04-30-20 STA A&S Transportation Agreement SY21-SY23
	Item C-5 Backup A & S Transportation SY21, 22 & 23 - not signed
	Item C-6 04-30-20 STA Powell Lanscaping & Design Inc. Contract
	Item C-6 Backup STA Powell Landscaping
	STPA Consent Agenda 04-30-2020
	Item PA-1 04-30-20 Policy 1.032 Emergency Policy Relating to School Board Meetings
	Item PA-1 Backup Policy 1.032 Emergency Policy Relating to School Board Meetings
	Item PC-1 04-30-20 STP Bank Reconciliation February 29, 2020
	Item PC-1A Backup STP Operating Feb20
	Item PC-1B Backup STP Internal Feb20
	Item PC-1C Backup STP MMA Feb20
	Item PC-2 04-30-20 STP Disbursements February 29, 2020
	Item PC-2 Backup STP Disbursements Feb20
	Item PC-3 04-30-20 STP Monthly Financial Statements February 29, 2020
	Item PC-3 Backup South Tech Prep (3441) Financial Statements February 2020
	Item PC-4 04-30-20 STP A&S Amended Transportation Agreement SY20
	Item PC-4 Backup A & S Transportation Amendment SY20
	Item PC-5 04-30-20 STP A&S Transportation Agreement SY21-SY23
	Item PC-5 Backup A & S Transportation SY21, 22 & 23 - not signed
	Item PC-6 04-30-20 STPA Food Services Agreement FY21
	Item PC-6 Backup STP Food Service Contract SY21 (1)
	STSC Consent Agenda 04-30-2020
	Item SCA-1 04-30-20 Policy 1.032 Emergency Policy Relating to School Board Meetings
	Item SCA-1 Backup Policy 1.032 Emergency Policy Relating to School Board Meetings
	Item SCC-1 04-30-20 STSC Bank Reconciliation February 29, 2020
	Item SCC-1A Backup STSC Operating Feb20
	Item SCC-1B Backup STSC Internal Feb20
	Item SCC-1C Backup STSC MMA Feb20
	Item SCC-2 04-30-20 STSC Disbursements February 29, 2020
	Item SCC-2 Backup STSC Disbursements Feb20
	Item SCC-3 04-30-20 STSC Monthly Financial Statements February 29, 2020
	Item SCC-3 Backup SouthTech Success (4121) Financial Statements February 2020

